Planning and Zoning Commission
November 1, 2023 - Regular Meeting

/ To: Dillon Planning and Zoning Commission
From: Ned West, AICP, Sr. Town Planner

D I L Lo N Subject: Waste and Recycling Enclosures

Agenda ltem: 5
COLORADDO

Action to be Considered: (Public Hearing)
Consideration of Resolution No. PZ 07-23, Series of 2023

A RESOLUTION RECOMMENDING Approval of an Ordinance Amending CHAPTER 16 OF THE
DILLON MUNICIPAL CODE REGARDING WASTE AND RECYCLING ENCLOSURES.

Background/Time Frame:
e June 7, 2023: Planning Commission discussion related to waste & recycling enclosures.
e August 2, 2023: Planning Commission study to develop potential Code amendment.
e October 4, 2023: Planning Commission continued discussion.
e November 1, 2023: Planning Commission review and a resolution recommending the
Town Council approve a Code amendment.

Summary:
This resolution recommends the Town Council approve Dillon Municipal Code (“DMC” or

“Code”) Chapter 16 — “Zoning” amendments related to requirements and design guidelines for
trash and recycling enclosures. The Dillon Municipal Code currently lacks clear regulations and
design guidelines for waste and recycling enclosures. The Planning Commission has been
studying this topic during several public meetings and has stated they are prepared to consider
the resolution to recommend approval.

The Code currently states:
“Sec. 16-8-70. - Service areas.

Service areas, outdoor storage, garbage cans and trash storage areas shall be screened
from adjacent properties, streets and other public areas by fences, planting or other
suitable means as approved by the Town.

(Ord. 19-96 §8.03)"”
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Proposed Code Criteria:

Section 1. Chapter 16, Article IV of the Dillon Municipal Code is recommended to be
amended by the addition of a new Section 16-4-55, to read as follows:

Sec. 16-4-55. - Waste and recycling enclosures required
A. New development.

1. All development projects undertaken following the
effective date of the ordinance codified herein must provide at least one (1)
permanent waste receptacle and one (1) permanent recycling receptacle of a size,
scale, and capacity sufficient to accommodate the development and its occupants
on site, whether attached to or detached from the principal structure on the site.

2. Waste and recycling receptacles installed as part of new
development projects must be fully contained within a single enclosure, on the
subject development property, that meets the design specifications set forth in
Section 16-8-75. However, properties providing more than two (2) receptacles,
may construct more than one (1) enclosure if not prevented by other provisions
of this Code.

3. Enclosures may be attached to or detached from the
principal structure on the site; except that, enclosures associated with large
commercial structures shall to the greatest extent practicable, incorporate the
waste receptacle enclosure into the primary structure.

4, Enclosures must be sited such that they are not a dominant
feature on the frontage of the property.

5. Trash and recycling storage enclosures or structures
meeting the definition set forth in Section 16-1-200 for accessory structure, will
be classified as such. Enclosures not meeting such definition will be classified as
primary uses.

[NOTE: Accessory structure means a detached subordinate building located on the
same lot as the principal building, the use of which is incidental to the principal
building or use of the lot; such building shall not be used for living or sleeping
quarters and shall not contain plumbing capable of facilitating a bathroom or a
kitchen, with the exception of detached accessory dwelling units approved in
accordance with this Code. (DMC § 16-1-200)]
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B. Permits required. Notwithstanding anything in this Code to the
contrary, it is unlawful for any person to construct, or cause to be constructed, a
trash and recycling enclosure without having first obtained a valid development
permit and building permit.

[NOTE: -Development Permit review: Level | (120 SF or less) or Level Il (greater than
120 SF), and a Level lll process, thus a Planning Commission review and approval,
is required for all enclosures greater than 200 SF on non-residentially zoned
properties.]

C. Enclosure maintenance requirements; existing and new.

1. All enclosures shall be structurally sound, maintained in
good condition and repair, kept clear of snow and ice, and kept clean at all times
by the owner of the subject property.

2. Any enclosure that is determined by the Town to be in
disrepair or pose a hazard to safety, health, or public welfare, shall be deemed a
nuisance, and the Town shall have each of the remedies set forth in Chapter 7 of
this Code determined necessary to abate such nuisance (e.g., cleaning, repair,
maintenance, or removal and replacement), including the authority to abate the
nuisance, following the owner’s failure to do so on its own during the applicable
notice period, and charge the property owner for the full cost of the work, which
if unpaid will become a lien upon the respective property. The foregoing remedy
may be exercised in addition to the Town’s exercise of any other remedies set
forth in this Code.

Section 2. Section 16-8-70 of the Dillon Municipal Code is recommended to be amended to
read as follows (words added are underlined; words deleted are stricken-through):

Sec. 16-8-70. - Service areas.

Service areas, outdoor storage, waste and recycling receptacles, garbage
eans and waste and recycling enclosures and £rash storage areas shall be screened
from adjacent properties, streets and other public areas by fences, planting or
other suitable means as approved by the Town.

Section 3. Chapter 16, Article VIl of the Dillon Municipal Code is recommended to be
amended by the addition of a new Section 16-8-75, to read as follows:
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Sec. 16-8-75. - Waste and recycling enclosure.

A. Design specifications. Waste and recycling enclosures required
pursuant to Section 16-4-55 of this Code must meet the following design
specifications:

1. Enclosures must be fitted with a roof designed to support
snow and wind loads, and such that the roof will not be damaged during the
servicing of containers within the enclosure.

2. Enclosure design submittals must include at least one (1)
written statement from a licensed waste hauler confirming that such waste hauler
is able to access the waste receptacle or container with the waste hauler’s
standard hauling equipment for waste removal based on the proposed design and
site configuration. Access to the waste receptacle by haulers shall be designed to
avoid interference with vehicle traffic to the greatest extent practicable.

3. To prevent damage to the enclosure and receptacle during
servicing, enclosures for large capacity steel receptacles, “Dumpsters”, must be
designed with bollards along the interior backside of the enclosure, and on each
side of the container perpendicular to the service opening to the enclosure.

4, Service openings on enclosures must be designed to
provide not less than eighteen inches (18”) of clearance on each side of the
proposed container. The opening corners must be designed with protection
(bollards, steel angle iron, etc.) to prevent damage during servicing.

5. Swing gates must have a minimum eight inch (8”) clearance
above the ground to accommodate potential clearance issues such as snow
accumulation. Overhead doors are preferred and recommended as they are not
subject to issues with snow accumulation and create a seal superior to swing gates
to prevent the attraction of vermin.

6. Enclosure must be designed with a pedestrian access
doorway, with a minimum width of thirty-six inches (36”).

7. All enclosures must provide space for a recycling container
equal to fifty percent (50%) of the space provided for the trash container.
Enclosures associated with restaurants shall also provide adequate space for a
grease container.
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8. The design, color, and materials of the enclosure must be
architecturally compatible with the primary structure on the site.

9. Enclosures must be ventilated but the ventilation does not
need to be mechanical unless required by applicable building codes.

10. Enclosures must be landscaped sufficiently to screen the
structure from adjoining properties or roadways.

11. Proposed trash and recycling enclosures associated with
large commercial structures shall, to the greatest extent possible, incorporate the
waste receptacle enclosure into the primary structure.

Budget Impact:
To be determined.

Staff Recommendation:
Town staff recommend approval of Resolution PZ 07-23, Series of 2023.

Motion For Approval:
I move we approve Resolution PZ No. 07-23, Series of 2023.

Action Requested:
Motion, Second, Roll Call Vote.
Resolutions require the affirmative vote of a majority of the members present.

Department Head Responsible:
Ned West, AICP, Sr. Town Planner
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